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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome,

          3  everyone, to today's hearing of the Public Safety

          4  Committee. I know that Melinda Katz needs to get

          5  across to Land Use, so let me introduce my

          6  colleagues. Melinda Katz and Simcha Felder, who is

          7  actually not on this Committee, but heard we were

          8  having this meeting this morning and feels so

          9  strongly about the graffiti that he decided to come

         10  by and so we welcome him.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You're welcome,

         13  Simcha.

         14                 Today we're going to be discussing

         15  Introduction 576, which would amend the

         16  Administrative Code's Anti-Graffiti Provisions in

         17  relation to the possession and sale of graffiti

         18  instruments.

         19                 I think everyone in this room is

         20  probably aware that during my time here as Council

         21  member, myself and this Committee have been waging

         22  war against graffiti, of course, with the assistance

         23  of the Administration, and we've been so thankful

         24  for that.

         25                 Graffiti vandalism is a plague on the
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          2  aesthetic quality of New York's neighborhoods, and

          3  also presents a significant economic burden by

          4  decreasing property values, frustrating local

          5  businesses, forcing private citizens and the City to

          6  spend significant resources restoring vandalized

          7  services.

          8                 Since 2002, New York City has removed

          9  over 77 million square feet of graffiti, and in 2006

         10  alone, the City has spent approximately $13.5

         11  million for paint, labor and equipment to clean up

         12  graffiti.

         13                 As I always say, graffiti is a

         14  gateway crime. It's a gateway for crime to get a

         15  foothold in good neighborhoods, and it's a gateway

         16  for children to enter into a world of crime.

         17                 In spite of the City's existing

         18  anti-graffiti laws and initiatives, the problem

         19  appears to be getting worse.

         20                 Arrests for violation of the State's

         21  anti-graffiti laws have been increasing every year.

         22  Notably, there were more arrests in the first six

         23  months of 2007 than in all of 2003. And the number

         24  of graffiti-related 3-1-1 complaint calls increased

         25  300 percent between 2004 and 2006.
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          2                 In 2005, the City enacted local law

          3  124, which I personally sponsored. The law amended

          4  the Administrative Code's anti-graffiti law in the

          5  following ways: It prohibited persons from

          6  possessing graffiti materials with the intent to

          7  make graffiti. It made it illegal for persons under

          8  21 to possess graffiti instruments absent explicit

          9  permission, and it made it illegal to sell graffiti

         10  instruments to any person under 21 years of age,

         11  which amended the previous law, which was 18 years

         12  of age.

         13                 After the enactment of that law,

         14  several artists brought a lawsuit challenging the

         15  anti-graffiti amendments on First Amendment and

         16  equal protection grounds.

         17                 The Trial Court granted plaintiff's

         18  motion for a preliminary injunction prohibiting

         19  enforcement of the law's amendments, and on appeal,

         20  the 2nd Circuit upheld the injunction. In so

         21  holding, the 2nd Circuit expressed the concern that

         22  the amendments imposed too heavy a burden on speech

         23  and were not narrowly tailored to achieve the

         24  legitimate goal of combatting graffiti vandalism.

         25                 I, of course, don't agree with that,
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          2  but we have to operate within the legal context we

          3  find ourselves. We find ourselves under a circuit

          4  which rivals the San Francisco circuit for its

          5  activism in favor of our graffiti vandals. But I'll

          6  leave my personal editorializing out of this

          7  well-written opening before I get in more trouble.

          8                 The introduction we'll discuss today

          9  would amend the Administrative Code to address the

         10  concerns raised by the courts.

         11                 First, in response to the 2nd

         12  Circuit's -- let me read that again. First, in

         13  response to the 2nd Circuit's First Amendment

         14  concerns, the new bill includes multiple express

         15  exceptions to the general restriction on possession

         16  of prohibitive materials. The law does not apply to

         17  graffiti instruments that are carried in a locked or

         18  sealed container, or to any person who possesses

         19  graffiti instruments with the consent to the

         20  property owner, under the supervision of a property

         21  owner, it being used at a place of employment or

         22  education of a facility, during the course of

         23  employment or class participation, or where the use

         24  of graffiti instruments is necessary for

         25  participation in a government-sponsored function or
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          2  purpose.

          3                 We've additionally addressed the

          4  First Amendment concerns regarding the overbreadth

          5  and vagueness that they claimed existed, so we will

          6  limit possession now. We will make a much clearer

          7  definition of the property upon which an individual

          8  is prohibited from possessing an open, or unlocked

          9  container. The definition of property of another now

         10  allows a person to possess graffiti implements free

         11  of regulation while they are in any property that

         12  they personally rent, increase or own, including but

         13  not limited to a personal residence, motor vehicle

         14  or art studio. So, let's be clear, though, this

         15  time: we are intending to enforce this regulation on

         16  all public property.

         17                 Finally, to assuage the Court's equal

         18  protection concerns in reevaluating and amending

         19  Local Law 124, the City has provided extensive

         20  statistics and analysis illustrating the

         21  overwhelming link between youth, especially youth

         22  between the ages of 18 and 20, and graffiti

         23  offenses.

         24                 The Committee Report provide a

         25  thorough discussion of these statistics and we look
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          2  forward to hearing testimony from the NYPD and

          3  others in this regard.

          4                 With that being said, I'd like to

          5  turn the floor over to our first panel, which

          6  consists of both the Police Department and the

          7  Commissioner of CAU. So, welcome to you all. And I'm

          8  not sure what order you'd like to go in, but the

          9  floor is yours.

         10                 COMMISSIONER PARVIZI: Good morning,

         11  Chairperson Vallone, Jr., and members of the Public

         12  Safety Committee. My name is Nazli Parvizi. I am the

         13  new Commissioner of the Mayor's Community Assistance

         14  Unit, CAU.

         15                 CAU serves as the Mayor's eyes and

         16  ears in the City's many diverse neighborhoods, and

         17  also plays a pivotal role in the Administration's

         18  efforts to improve the quality of life for all New

         19  Yorkers.

         20                 Through our direct work with various

         21  community organizations and City agencies, we are

         22  able to address issues to make New York City a

         23  better place to live and work.

         24                 CAU is also actively involved in

         25  carrying forward the Mayor's City- and Borough-based
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          2  initiatives to address larger issues facing

          3  communities, a major component of which is graffiti.

          4                 Graffiti is a symbol of urban blight,

          5  which is instantly, and in many cases unfairly,

          6  portray a community as neglected and dangerous.

          7                 Nationwide, and especially New York

          8  City, graffiti is a serious problem. An estimated

          9  $12 billion a year is spent cleaning up graffiti in

         10  the US. In New York City agencies spent

         11  approximately $13.5 million in 2006 for paint, labor

         12  and equipment, to clean up graffiti in all five

         13  boroughs.

         14                 The graffiti problem in this City is

         15  also growing, as shown by an increase in complaint

         16  calls to 3-1-1. In 2004, there were 2,661 calls, in

         17  2005 the number increased to 4,861. In 2006, there

         18  were 7,407 calls. This constitutes a 300 percent

         19  increase in graffiti-related complaints to 3-1-1

         20  between 2004 and 2006.

         21                 The City devotes a lot of time and

         22  resources to graffiti removal. The CAU works with

         23  the New York Police Department, 3-1-1 and other City

         24  agencies on the Citywide Anti-Graffiti Initiative.

         25                 Since 2002, the City has removed over
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          2  77 million square feet of graffiti Citywide. Last

          3  year the Graffiti Removal Program cleaned over 4,600

          4  locations Citywide, more than doubled the number of

          5  locations claimed in 2004, and surpassing the City's

          6  previous graffiti removal records.

          7                 CAU offers free graffiti removal and

          8  clean-up to any NYC resident or business owner that

          9  has been a victim of graffiti vandalism. Other City

         10  agencies, including the Department of

         11  Transportation, New York City Housing Authority, and

         12  the Department of Parks and Recreation, just to name

         13  a few, are responsible for removing graffiti from

         14  public property that falls under their respective

         15  jurisdiction.

         16                 Currently CAU operates 13 graffiti

         17  trucks in all five boroughs to assist us in graffiti

         18  removal. In addition, the Department of Sanitation's

         19  graffiti program was reinstituted in July of 2005,

         20  which returned two graffiti removal trucks and

         21  personnel into operation.

         22                 Another tool used by the City to

         23  fight graffiti is the Mayor's Paint Program. The

         24  Mayor's Paint Program is an important part of the

         25  Mayor's Anti-Graffiti Initiative, and provides
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          2  community groups up to 26 gallons of paint, 26

          3  roller sleeves and 12 roller frames for their local

          4  graffiti removal project.

          5                 Since 2002, the Mayor's Paint Program

          6  has distributed over 5,400 gallons of paint to

          7  various community groups and helped combat the

          8  graffiti problem on a local level.

          9                 Applications for free graffiti

         10  removal, as well as the Mayor's Paint Project are

         11  available on the CAU website, www.nyc.gov/cau.

         12  Applications are available in English, Spanish and

         13  Chinese.

         14                 A new addition that will be coming to

         15  our website, and one I'm very proud of, is a listing

         16  of all pending and completed locations of graffiti

         17  removal throughout the City, and can be found by

         18  borough, community board, police precinct or local

         19  district.

         20                 Intro. 576 will prohibit the sale and

         21  possession of graffiti instruments for anyone under

         22  the age of 21. Prohibiting the sale of wide-tip

         23  markers and spray paint to young adults will help to

         24  prevent their access to these materials and thus

         25  prevent more graffiti throughout New York City.
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          2                 The Administration supports Intro.

          3  576, which will be another effective tool in

          4  combatting this quality of life crime, so that we

          5  may rid the City we love of this blight.

          6                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          7  speak with you today about a major concern of the

          8  Administration, and my agency in particular, and to

          9  voice my support for the bill.

         10                 I'd also like to introduce Ray

         11  Carerro, who heads up our graffiti program. The two

         12  of us will be happy to take your questions at this

         13  time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         15  Commissioner. I welcome you to both your posts, and

         16  to the war against graffiti. We'll first hear from

         17  Commissioner Petito, and then we'll ask some

         18  questions.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Thank

         20  you. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, and members of the

         21  Council. I am Susan Petito, Assistant Commissioner,

         22  Intergovernmental Affairs, the New York City Police

         23  Department, and I am joined today by Captain Elwood

         24  Selover, Commanding Officer of the NYPD's Citywide

         25  Vandals Task Force. On behalf of Police Commissioner
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          2  Raymond Kelly, we are pleased to be here today to

          3  express our support for the bill before you, Intro.

          4  576, which amends Administrative Code Section

          5  10-117, regulating the sale and possession of

          6  graffiti instruments.

          7                 The bill represents a collaborative

          8  effort between the Council and the Administration,

          9  intended to address a decision of the United States

         10  Court of Appeals for the 2nd Circuit, which affirmed

         11  an injunction against enforcement against some

         12  aspects of Section 10-117, as added by Local Law 124

         13  of 2005.

         14                 Specifically, the plaintiff's had

         15  challenged the provisions of Local Law 124, which

         16  raised the age prohibition for the sale of aerosol

         17  spray paint and broad-tipped markers from 18 to 21,

         18  and made it illegal for anyone under 21 to possess

         19  such materials on the property of another or in any

         20  public building or upon any public facility.

         21                 The Court found that these new

         22  provisions of the law most likely violated the First

         23  Amendment by imposing a burden on free speech beyond

         24  what was necessary to further the City's interest in

         25  combatting graffiti.
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          2                 So, we have worked together to tailor

          3  the bill more narrowly so that it may provide a

          4  strong enforcement tool against destructive crime,

          5  while comporting with the Court's findings.

          6                 Intro. 576 retains the prohibition on

          7  sale of graffiti instruments to those under 21. We

          8  continue to believe that raising the age for the

          9  lawful sale of graffiti instruments will assist the

         10  City in its efforts to prevent the graffiti crimes.

         11                 The bill also makes clear that the

         12  law prohibits possession of graffiti instruments on

         13  all property not owned, rented, leased or resided in

         14  by the offender. The bill provides reasonable

         15  exceptions to that prohibition, including possession

         16  in a manufacturer-sealed package, possession in a

         17  locked container, such as a briefcase or backpack,

         18  possession on property whose owner has consented in

         19  writing or is actually supervising the use of the

         20  instrument, possession in the course of employment

         21  with written permission, possession at a school

         22  where the instrument will be used in class, or

         23  possession in a location with the consent of a

         24  government agency.

         25                 We've discussed many times the
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          2  message of disorder and lawlessness that graffiti

          3  communicates.

          4                 We have also discussed the

          5  comprehensive initiatives undertaken by the Police

          6  Department to address this problem, by enforcement,

          7  by education and with the help of the community

          8  assistance unit, by clean-ups.

          9                 This year, as of June 10th, the

         10  Police Department has effected 1,836 arrests for

         11  graffiti crimes, representing a 44 percent increase

         12  over the 1,278 such arrests at this time last year.

         13                 The Department continues to devote

         14  significant resources to fighting this crime,

         15  including not only focused enforcement efforts, but

         16  also the development of a graffiti tagged database,

         17  implementation of a reward program, educational

         18  outreach efforts, and the introduction of a weekly

         19  GraffitiStat Meeting to ensure that the Department's

         20  emphasis on addressing this offensive conduct

         21  remains strong.

         22                 Graffiti crimes are overwhelmingly

         23  committed by young people, an observation which we

         24  believe was one of the primary reasons for the

         25  enactment of Local Law 124, specifically addressing
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          2  graffiti committed by young adults, aged 18, 19 and

          3  20.

          4                 We would refer you to the chart

          5  attached to our statement which demonstrates the

          6  over-representation of those under 21 in the

          7  population of criminals arrested for making

          8  graffiti, or possession of graffiti instruments.

          9                 One of the more telling statistics is

         10  that while 15 percent of those arrested for graffito

         11  crimes in 2006 were aged 18, 19 ad 20, that age

         12  group constitutes only four percent of New York

         13  City's population.

         14                 In conclusion, we thank you for this

         15  opportunity to express our support for Intro. 576

         16  and we'll be pleased to answer your questions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         18  Commissioner.

         19                 Let me just reiterate what you said

         20  about this being a collaborative effort. I want to

         21  thank the Administration, especially Michael

         22  Cardozo, and Virginia Waters, who is here, who has

         23  been our lead counsel on this, for the extensive

         24  hours that we spent together, drafting both the

         25  original bill and the subsequent amendments, to
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          2  address court concerns and to make sure we have a

          3  bill that would be as useful as possible in

          4  assisting your Administration to get out there and

          5  do what it can to fight graffiti.

          6                 So, I want to thank you all for the

          7  help you've been on this.

          8                 Commissioner, you introduced Captain

          9  Selover. Is that how you pronounce it? Selover? Next

         10  I just would like to put him on the record to

         11  describe his expertise in this area?

         12                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: Good morning, ladies

         13  and gentlemen.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Good morning.

         15                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: I've been the

         16  Commanding Officer of the Citywide Vandals Task

         17  Force for two years now. I have 23 years on the

         18  Police Department. During my two years in command,

         19  I've been involved and supervised and headed a unit

         20  that we've made well over 1,000 arrests in regards

         21  to graffiti and graffiti-related offenses.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. And I

         23  know, Ms. Petito, you attached this chart which is

         24  very helpful and I just would like to take a few

         25  seconds to summarize some of the statistics that you
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          2  mentioned. You stated, or the statistics show that

          3  arrests for graffiti for the period of 2003 through

          4  2007 have been increasing every year, from 1,237

          5  arrests in 2003 to 2,962 arrests, well more than

          6  double in 2006, and more in the first six months in

          7  2007 than in all of 2003. We went through how the

          8  calls to 3-1-1 are increasing. You mention in your

          9  statistics that persons under the age of 21

         10  constitute 69 percent of the total graffiti

         11  offenders in 2003; 71 percent in 2004; 72 in 2005;

         12  73 in 2006; and 83 percent in total in 2007. So, it

         13  shows, as I've been saying, that graffiti is once

         14  again moving from the older individuals we've seen

         15  in the past, people like Keeko (phonetic), who are

         16  doing time in jail, back to our youth. And as I've

         17  said, that's for a few reasons: Number one, just the

         18  general reason that our Police Department has been

         19  depleted through attrition and through lack of the

         20  ability to recruit because of salary reasons, and

         21  the fact that we had 41,000 police officers, now

         22  we're down to close to, very soon to be under

         23  36,000, and clearly that's an over-burdened force.

         24                 The second reason is the fact that

         25  corporate America has been targeting our youth, and
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          2  glorifying and mainstreaming graffiti by putting in

          3  video games, by doing advertising campaigns, by

          4  putting up billboards, you name it, with graffiti on

          5  it, and our kids are impressionable and they're not

          6  stupid and they see this, and they see how one

          7  corporation today has an advertisement in magazines

          8  which shows it's a sneaker advertisement, it shows a

          9  guy who looks like a thug with a hood on and a gas

         10  mask and two graffiti spray paint cans in his hands,

         11  targeted at kids buying sneakers. It has nothing to

         12  do with buying sneakers, but that's what our kids

         13  are out there against, and clearly that has an

         14  effect and it's shown by these statistics.

         15                 Also, you state that people between

         16  the age of ten to 20 years of age constitute only 14

         17  percent of the population, but commit 69 percent of

         18  the graffiti crimes. With regards to people between

         19  the ages of 18 and 20, in 2003, almost 20 percent of

         20  our arrests were between that age group. In 2004,

         21  17.5, in 2005, 14.7. So, it constitutes between 15

         22  to 20 percent, just those three years alone.

         23                 So, I think that sums up some of the

         24  statistics that you've given us. I'd like to ask the

         25  panel how the proposed law would assist both the
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          2  Police Department and CAU in the fight against

          3  graffiti?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Mr.

          5  Chairman, from the perspective of the Police

          6  Department certainly, and on behalf of the City, the

          7  proposed law retaining the prohibition on the sale

          8  up to the age of 21 keeps the implements out of the

          9  hands of those who are more likely to commit the

         10  crime. So, we think that that is a worthwhile and

         11  important part of the bill. And I believe the other

         12  part of the bill which addresses the other concerns

         13  of the court regarding where the bill would actually

         14  take effect in terms of possession also helps

         15  clarify and it will ultimately, we hope, be upheld

         16  by the 2nd Circuit as well.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Captain Selover,

         18  I have been speaking to many police officers about

         19  the enforcement of graffiti laws, and they explained

         20  to me that before my bill any graffiti arrests for

         21  possession basically required an intent to use that

         22  spray paint can unlawfully. In order to prove that

         23  in court, you basically had to wait until they were

         24  spraying it on the wall to make the arrest.

         25                 So, with the fact that now for under
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          2  age 21, the law would allow an arrest based on

          3  straight possession, would that assist your unit in

          4  making graffiti arrests?

          5                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: Yes, sir.

          6  Absolutely.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And how would

          8  that be?

          9                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: Just as you said, in

         10  many cases while doing surveillance and so forth, we

         11  actually have to wait til the spray paint can is in

         12  the hand, ready to go. And obviously once they start

         13  to spray paint, there is a small amount of damage

         14  that begins with spray painting, so it still

         15  requires a clean-up. It still damages somebody's

         16  property, that sometimes maybe, depending on the

         17  brick and stuff, can't totally be cleaned off to

         18  pre-graffiti status. So, absolutely, being able to

         19  grab them before they start their damage would

         20  definitely help our efforts.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Ms. Petito, how

         22  do you believe that the proposed amendments that we

         23  worked on will address the concerns that have been

         24  raised by the court? Do you believe they efficiently

         25  address the concerns?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

          3  believe so. I think they've been drafted in complete

          4  collaboration with the Law Department. And I am not,

          5  in any way, a constitutional expert, but in my

          6  reading they absolutely comport with the scrutiny

          7  standard that the 2nd Circuit will most likely

          8  utilize when they review the bill as drafted.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We've also been

         10  joined by Council Member Addabbo. Thank you, Joseph,

         11  for coming down today.

         12                 I'd like to ask anybody on the panel,

         13  are you aware of any other laws here in the City or

         14  elsewhere that restrict the rights of this age

         15  group, of people under 21?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Not

         17  that we're aware of.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. One

         19  moment.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Mr.

         21  Chairman, I should clarify, about graffiti, correct?

         22  Not about --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, no. I'm

         24  thinking about laws that talk about possession of

         25  alcohol and things like that.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Oh,

          3  yes. Yes. The possession of a licensed handgun,

          4  being able to drink alcohol, you know, the sale of

          5  alcohol to those under 21 I should say.

          6                 So, yes, I'm sorry, I misunderstood.

          7  I thought you meant other jurisdictions about

          8  graffiti.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Correct. Those

         10  are a few. And let me say my staff, who also has

         11  done a lot of work on this, Liz Dubin and Jennine

         12  Ventura and Lauren Axelrod and a few others who

         13  aren't here today, have done a remarkable job on

         14  this legislation, and have noted that not only are

         15  those laws drafted to affect the rights of people

         16  under the age of 21, but they have been given

         17  special protections also. Their parents are charged

         18  with support of a child under the age of 21, foster

         19  care must be provided to those under 21, a right to

         20  free public education extends until the age of 21,

         21  and as you said, there have been restrictions, such

         22  as alcoholic beverage, possession of weapons, and as

         23  we said in other jurisdictions, at least four other

         24  jurisdictions, restrictions on graffiti and

         25  possession by people under the age of 21. So, again,
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          2  those are concerns that the court had. But again,

          3  there have been restrictions and rights granted

          4  based on that age group.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Mr.

          6  Chairman, if I could interrupt?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, Ma'am.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I have

          9  been handed a notice that there are four other

         10  municipalities that have enacted anti-graffiti

         11  ordinances targeted those under 21.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's what our

         13  research shows also.

         14                 I always like to be the first, but I

         15  don't mind being the fifth, as long as it proves to

         16  our courts here that this is something that has been

         17  upheld elsewhere and is within the interest of a

         18  government to do in the fight against graffiti.

         19                 Let me ask anyone who would like to

         20  answer, do you believe, other than these statistics,

         21  that there is sufficient rationale to raise the age

         22  from 18 to 21?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I'll

         24  answer on behalf of the panel, I believe there

         25  absolutely is sufficient rationale. I think the
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          2  table attached to our testimony speaks to the higher

          3  likelihood, you know, regarding age, that persons

          4  under 21 will commit a graffiti-related crime or

          5  violation, rather than those over 21 and we see that

          6  this is a rational means to attempt to address that

          7  issue.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And, again, the

          9  exception that's now in the law, for possession of a

         10  graffiti tool, such as spray paint in a locked

         11  container, or in the manufacturer's packaging, do

         12  you believe that satisfies the perceived right of

         13  someone under 21 to carry a spray paint can to say

         14  an art class which might require it? Not that I've

         15  seen that, by the way, because spray paint cans

         16  aren't used in art classes or in school because of

         17  the noxious fumes, but in the world of the 2nd

         18  Circuit, let's assume there's a little artist who is

         19  18 years old with a spray paint can, would this give

         20  them the ability to get that can to wherever they

         21  needed to go?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

         23  think we believe that this is a reasonable

         24  restriction on their ability to possess that

         25  implement, and the fact that the bill has been
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          2  redrafted to make it a defense -- to not make it an

          3  affirmative defense anymore, but to make it part of

          4  the underlying crime, I think that also addresses

          5  the Court's concern that there is no affirmative

          6  burden of the person to show that they will have

          7  attempted to put it in a locked container, or

          8  they've got the employer's permission, for example.

          9  It's been redrafted I think to address the Court's

         10  concern.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And just for

         12  those of us who aren't attorneys, what that means is

         13  that no longer would an arrest be able to be made,

         14  and then by providing proof that you had a

         15  legitimate purpose for this, you'd be able to

         16  dismiss the arrest, now these exceptions are in the

         17  law, meaning the arrest cannot be made, and I think

         18  that fairly addresses some of the Court's concerns.

         19                 Do you have any thoughts, while I

         20  have this distinguished panel here, on anything else

         21  we can be doing? I have racked my brain, I continue

         22  to try to come up with things. I'm working on

         23  something now to perhaps license any possession of

         24  etching acid, but of course there are legal issues

         25  involved with that. Any other ideas or areas that
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          2  you think we can hit here as a City Council that

          3  will assist you in your fight?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

          5  I think that the Council has done an enormous

          6  amount. I believe that the nuisance abatement

          7  procedure that was put in place regarding abatement

          8  of graffiti nuisances is also a very valuable tool.

          9                 I think that it's just a question of

         10  doing the three-pronged approach that we've taken in

         11  the Police Department, and I would note that the

         12  fact that arrests are up might also be related to

         13  the fact that we are sustaining our enforcement

         14  efforts against graffiti, not necessarily that there

         15  is perhaps a greater incidence of graffiti, but that

         16  we are completely focused on this as an issue. And

         17  Captain Selover is in charge of a unit which

         18  coordinates that effort Citywide.

         19                 So, I think that we've got good

         20  tools, this Administrative Code Section is also

         21  going to be a wonderful tool to use.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's very

         23  often true, what you said about the fact that just

         24  because arrests are up doesn't mean the crime is up.

         25  Many times fare beating arrests or prostitution
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          2  arrests occur because of increased enforcement, more

          3  stings and that sort of enforcement which would

          4  seriously increase an amount of arrests.

          5                 However, I happen to disagree a

          6  little bit about graffiti arrests, based on my own

          7  experience in this area and many of the

          8  anti-graffiti groups who are testifying today, and

          9  just people in the neighborhood, I think the

         10  evidence is there that this is once again a crime

         11  that is on the rise and the increase in arrests does

         12  show an increase in enforcement which we are

         13  thankful for, but also does show that there is

         14  actually an increase in graffiti in the City. Again,

         15  not the fault of your Administration, you've got

         16  5,000 less cops doing double duty. It would be

         17  almost impossible for you to concentrate on this

         18  crime as you had in the past, and that's a topic for

         19  a whole other hearing that we actually had a few

         20  weeks ago.

         21                 So, I am done with questions. David

         22  Yassky, welcome, and you have questions?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you. I

         24  just have one question, but, Chair Vallone, I just

         25  want to thank you for, you know, you have really
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          2  attacked this problem with a Captain A-hab-like

          3  focus, for which I thank you because my

          4  neighborhoods have this issue. Perhaps not as much,

          5  but they actually have it, and you're only going to

          6  make progress by a dedicated and unrelenting focus

          7  which you really brought, and I thank you for it. I

          8  really do.

          9                 My question, I looked at the arrest

         10  statistics in here, what do we know about the folks,

         11  about these folks who are getting the roughly 3,000

         12  people arrested to date, or the roughly 5,000 people

         13  to date this year, roughly 5,000 arrested last year,

         14  and I have two questions: How many of them are

         15  repeat, if we know that? And if you've covered this,

         16  I apologize. And what do we know about what

         17  punishments are meeted out to them?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: We

         19  have a sense that there are repeat offenders. We

         20  don't have any hard data for you. We can certainly

         21  come back to you with that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, maybe,

         23  and I apologize, I'm sorry, I don't know the names

         24  of the other folks on the panel here besides Ms.

         25  Petito, I guess Captain Selover, if you don't want
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          2  to speculate, but just off the cuff, do you think if

          3  there are 3,000 arrests here, is that 1,000 people

          4  or, you know, 2,800 people?

          5                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: I really can't

          6  approximate off statistics, but obviously, if the

          7  person arrested is younger, chances are it's their

          8  first time, because as Councilman Vallone said, it

          9  is a transitional or gateway type of crime. They

         10  started young for whatever peer pressures or

         11  whatever they see on television and so forth.

         12                 There are people who are

         13  professionals, if you will, at it, that do get

         14  arrested predicate over and over and over, yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And then what

         16  do we know about what happens after these arrests? I

         17  mean, how many? What kind of dispositions do we see?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         19  we don't have dispositional data. In the Police

         20  Department we don't have that data, but we can

         21  certainly attempt to find out for you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. All

         23  right, thank you.

         24                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, I
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          2  think, for the Captain A-hab remark.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Oh, to be

          4  clear --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm picturing a

          6  giant big white whale with graffiti all over its

          7  sides.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I meant that

          9  as the highest compliment. This is an issue that

         10  absolutely merits it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Strangely

         12  enough, though, as someone who was not attempting to

         13  compliment me used the same analogy, which I thought

         14  was interesting. Probably true, but interesting.

         15                 Council Member Felder.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         17  much. I apologize, Mr. Chairman, and witnesses, if I

         18  ask something that was already discussed, and then

         19  don't answer my question. I'll find out from someone

         20  else. I want to apologize for that.

         21                 First of all, I want to thank the

         22  Chairman for being in the forefront. You know, I

         23  call him "the crime buster" but certainly this

         24  morning, "the graffiti buster of the City." And I

         25  wanted to ask, when you do a clean-up of a location,
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          2  do you know how long it takes for those same

          3  locations to be graffiti'd again?

          4                 Did you discuss this? Do you know? Do

          5  you have the statistics?

          6                 MR. CARRERO: We don't hold statistics

          7  on how long it takes the vandals to come back to any

          8  one location. When we do do a clean-up there is

          9  notification that are done to the various agencies.

         10  Our Borough Director makes contact with community

         11  elders and the precincts will update them on exactly

         12  what we're doing in what neighborhoods we're in and

         13  we're cleaning and we provide them with a list of

         14  the location.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right. So, I

         16  thought you would say that. What I wanted to say is

         17  that there is no question that the clean-up is

         18  important, but unfortunately, I find in my district

         19  that the only places that remain clean are really

         20  the owners that invest a lot of money to maintain

         21  the place clean so that if it gets cleaned on

         22  Monday, they're paying out of their own pockets,

         23  which is not fair.

         24                 But to maintain it clean permanently,

         25  so that even if somebody shows up six months later,
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          2  it's cleaned right away, they go somewhere else, and

          3  unfortunately there are enough spots.

          4                 So, therefore the problem remains

          5  really even greater than we're discussing I think.

          6  Because even though you're doing a great job at

          7  trying to clean up, if two days later they come, and

          8  I had that experience, they paint the whole thing

          9  again. You know, the before and after pictures are

         10  great, but it's not two days later.

         11                 And I might say, who supplied these

         12  pictures? You did? Because I just want to tell you

         13  that one of the pictures, one of the pictures, just

         14  for the record, one of the pictures wasn't accurate,

         15  because you had a before and after of two different

         16  locations. And don't worry, it's not a conspiracy,

         17  but the Staten Island -- it's the same idea. But you

         18  wanted to see whether we actually are concentrated.

         19  So, I'm telling you it was two different locations -

         20  before and after.

         21                 Let me just say that my first

         22  experience with graffiti, my father had a very small

         23  synagogue, we call a schteibel (phonetic), which is

         24  like a room or a storefront church, and we lived in

         25  the back of the house and we woke up one morning and
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          2  there was a swastika painted with white spray paint

          3  on the side of the house, and that was -- I was a

          4  very young kid, and good things, you know, you can

          5  do good things with bad things as well. So, I went

          6  out that morning, I bought a can of red spray paint,

          7  that sort of matched the brick work, and very

          8  carefully, you know, tried to cover it over, spot

          9  spot spot, and to this day, if you go look at it

         10  carefully, you could see like a very, very mild --

         11  so, I think that the bill that the Chair together

         12  with the witnesses have come into sort of, is really

         13  a wonderful compromise where it says that it doesn't

         14  mean that spray point is poison -- it is poison, but

         15  it's not the devil. There are good things, people

         16  use it in construction and all sort of cheap -- my

         17  mother for years would not give up her cabinet, you

         18  know, her metal storage cabinet in the kitchen.

         19  Every time it got scratched up, she took out spray

         20  paint. I think she still has it, unfortunately.

         21                 So, at the same time, the bill is a

         22  great compromise to ensure that people who are using

         23  the spray paint for bad things, that there should be

         24  strict enforcement. And I am very proud of the work

         25  that everybody else has done.
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          2                 I've had nothing to do with this

          3  bill, only wanting to take some credit by being a

          4  sponsor, and I commend all of you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          6  Council member. Let me introduce Council Members

          7  Garodnick, Monserrate and Stewart. Thank you for

          8  joining us.

          9                 Commissioner Petito, as you said, the

         10  legal standard here summed up is basically whether

         11  we have a rational basis to put a reasonable

         12  restriction on the rights of 18 to 20 year olds. I

         13  believe you've testified through the statistics, and

         14  through other evidence, about our rational basis for

         15  singling out 18 to 20 year olds, and now we have to

         16  decide whether this was a reasonable restriction.

         17                 And, of course, not only is that the

         18  legal standard, that's something we're all very

         19  concerned about here in our jobs, to make sure that

         20  we only do reasonable things.

         21                 Now, again, we've mentioned the fact

         22  that there is now an exception for either a

         23  manufacturer's container or a locked container. If

         24  you're 18 to 20, you need for some reason to have

         25  spray paint on the street. Is there a reason why
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          2  anyone, in their wealth of experience at the table,

          3  could think of that someone may need spray paint on

          4  the street at a moment's notice, where this sort of

          5  restriction would not be reasonable?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Mr.

          7  Chairman, I can't think of any. I think that the

          8  situations that the bill covers cover the real world

          9  situations that people find themselves in.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, no one else

         11  can think of a reason why you would suddenly need to

         12  break out a can of spray paint without having the

         13  ten seconds to open up a lock, right, Commissioner?

         14                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: If they're very

         15  thirsty.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: If they're very

         17  thirsty. And how would a spray paint can help? Okay.

         18                 Does anyone have any questions before

         19  we move to the next panel? Okay, thank you all

         20  again, for the help that you've been in the past on

         21  this and will be in the future. We look forward to

         22  working with all of you, especially you, since

         23  you're a new Commissioner, to continue our fight

         24  against graffiti.

         25                 COMMISSIONER PARVIZI: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Next we'll be

          3  hearing from Robert Hills, who is with the National

          4  Council to Prevent Delinquency, which is an

          5  anti-graffiti project. We thank him for coming here

          6  today from Maryland, I believe, to provide

          7  testimony.

          8                 MR. HILLS: Good morning, Mr.

          9  Chairman, and members of the Committee. I'm Bob

         10  Hills, and I head the NCPD Anti-Graffiti Project.

         11  I'm here today to support this bill. I believe the

         12  Committee is aware that we supported the original

         13  version of this proposal, and when the new law was

         14  challenged in the District Court, submitted a

         15  declaration in support of the Chairman and Mayor of

         16  the City.

         17                 I'm not qualified to discuss the

         18  points of law that brought this here today. I can

         19  tell you that our position on the principles of good

         20  anti-graffiti programming have not changed.

         21                 Possession ordinances are a powerful

         22  law enforcement tool. Graffiti vandalism is a crime

         23  committed swiftly, usually at night and on the move.

         24  The damage can be extensive and costly to correct.

         25                 The chances of a law enforcement
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          2  officer witnessing a graffiti crime or responding to

          3  an in-progress call while a vandal is still present

          4  is usually slim. Consequently, providing the police

          5  with the power under certain well-defined

          6  circumstances to interdict on the basis of illegal

          7  possession of implements, can be extremely helpful

          8  in identifying and punishing serial graffiti

          9  vandals.

         10                 Regarding the age-related purchase

         11  restrictions, we have never opposed them. We base

         12  that position on the belief that in protecting the

         13  young and the public, governments have the right to

         14  determine what products or activities require mature

         15  judgment for use or participation.

         16                 On the specific issue of setting the

         17  possession and purchase age to 21 years, while we

         18  cannot offer compelling data such as those compiled

         19  by the NYPD, it has been our experience that in a

         20  number of jurisdictions with which we have worked,

         21  many graffiti vandals have been in the 18 to 21 age

         22  group.

         23                 The literature of outside New York

         24  supports that, and the statistics we have been able

         25  to acquire from other countries, specifically
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          2  Australia also support that, that you have a heavy

          3  number anywhere from 40 to 21 percent in the 19 to

          4  20 age group.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Did you say

          6  Australia?

          7                 MR. HILLS: Australia.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What statistics

          9  are those? I'm sorry.

         10                 MR. HILLS: The police in Australia

         11  keep statistics on what they term persons of

         12  interest in regard to graffiti crimes, and we have

         13  received from the National Graffiti Information

         14  Network a compilation from the last year and I'll be

         15  happy to share that with the Committee.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Could you just

         17  sum it up for us again.

         18                 MR. HILLS: It notes that -- they do a

         19  breakdown 18 to 25, and the 18 to 25, both male and

         20  female, is 21 percent.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's even worse

         22  here because we have 18 to 20 percent, so it would

         23  provide us even more of a reason to act than

         24  Australia.

         25                 Can you just tell us a little bit
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          2  more about your group, the group you represent?

          3                 MR. HILLS: We are a non-profit funded

          4  by the paint industry to work at reducing graffiti

          5  crime and in helping communities put together

          6  comprehensive anti-graffiti programs.

          7                 We have a program called "Responsible

          8  Retailing," through which we train retailers to

          9  prevent theft and to comply with bans on sale to

         10  minors. We maintain a website for retailers which

         11  contains information on over 2,000 jurisdictions,

         12  which means that virtually no one needs to be

         13  ignorant of the law pertaining to selling graffiti

         14  implements, if they have a retail store in the

         15  United States.

         16                 I just wanted to mention one other

         17  thing in regard to your bill. Our guidelines for

         18  ordinances follow very closely the International

         19  Municipal Lawyers Association model Anti-Graffiti

         20  Ordinance. That model contains both age limits for

         21  the purchase of potential graffiti instruments and

         22  for the possession of such products by young people.

         23                 So, what we have here today are not

         24  unique concepts. These are widely used, and good

         25  anti-graffiti planning and I think they really
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          2  belong in this City's anti-graffiti arsenal.

          3                 There is just one thing I'd like to

          4  add. We have recently learned that I think the

          5  possession aspect of this bill will be particularly

          6  important because both a German manufacturer and a

          7  Spanish manufacturer of aerosols specifically for

          8  graffiti writers are establishing a sales network

          9  here in the US and the smallest of these

         10  manufacturers has the capacity of 5 million cans a

         11  year.

         12                 Now, currently they have over 200

         13  outlets, internet, where kids can order this paint

         14  made specifically for taggers and piecers. So, you

         15  can -- they're on My Space, they're on E-bay and

         16  they see this as a very rich market. You would know

         17  the product because it's the one featured in the

         18  video game Getting Up Contents Under Pressure.

         19                 So, the possession part of this is

         20  going to be even more important than are getting

         21  retailers to comply with your new law.

         22                 So, thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. I

         24  guess I'm very familiar with that Mark Eco/Atari

         25  video game, which not only promotes graffiti but
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          2  teaches kids the best way to do graffiti without

          3  getting caught. And of course glamourizes it and has

          4  seven real-life graffiti vandals in it as mentors.

          5  And you mentioned these companies, I haven't seen

          6  these My Space pages you mentioned, how specifically

          7  are they targeting graffiti vandals?

          8                 MR. HILLS: Well, our information on

          9  them is mostly from European publications. The

         10  company is Montana, is the brand. It is made both in

         11  Germany and outside of Barcelona. Both manufacturers

         12  are I believe in litigation over the name of the

         13  product, but they originally were a manufacturer,

         14  and the manufacturer's distributor, the distributor

         15  went into business for themselves in Germany. It is

         16  the German Montana that carries the"Getting Up" logo

         17  on its can, so it appears to be some kind of

         18  cross-marketing agreement.

         19                 They have recruitment videos. One of

         20  our contacts in California has accumulated

         21  substantial information on the move, and the

         22  creating of their sales network over here, and this

         23  is over the past few months.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, I just want

         25  to hold up a can of spray paint sold by this
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          2  company, Montana, which has a vandal with his hood

          3  on, spray paint can in his hand. And as you

          4  mentioned, it does cross-market the pathetic video

          5  game Getting Up, which promotes crime and vandalism.

          6  And this is something that's now that you brought it

          7  to our attention, we're going to look at using our

          8  existing laws to go after, and if they're not

          9  sufficient, perhaps passing a new law.

         10                 So, thank you for bringing this to

         11  our attention, and we will look into what needs to

         12  be done to enforce laws or to perhaps write some new

         13  laws to ban this sort of marketing to our youth.

         14                 You also brought up a very good point

         15  about possession laws being important because

         16  chances of observing graffiti vandalism are slim.

         17  And I think that's something people fail to realize,

         18  is a lot of people in this room, and I don't know

         19  how many people, how many people have actually seen

         20  graffiti being done? There is one out of, I don't

         21  know, 100 people in this room, that have seen

         22  illegal graffiti being done. So, it's not a common

         23  occurrence. And if we have to wait until we saw it

         24  being done to make the arrest, we would not have any

         25  hope of weighing the war on graffiti, which is why
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          2  straight possession laws, which is what this is, are

          3  so important as a tool in the law enforcement

          4  arsenal.

          5                 Are there any other questions of this

          6  witness?

          7                 Council Member Stewart.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes. Thank

          9  you, Mr. Chair. What percentage have you found of

         10  the folks that are caught that perform this type of

         11  crime? Over the age of 21?

         12                 MR. HILLS: Well, we don't keep those

         13  figures. What we have we get from other sources,

         14  such as the NYPD keeps numbers, the literature,

         15  there is a book Understanding and Investigating

         16  Graffiti, which does a breakdown of the under 18

         17  over 18, but individual cities would have to track

         18  that. Some do, and most don't.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The reason

         20  why I ask that question is basically that the

         21  penalty, while it seem to be, you know, if someone

         22  is caught, I think there should be two types of

         23  penalty, one for the folks over 21, and one for

         24  those that are under 21. Because if someone is a

         25  28-year-old man that is committing this crime, I

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  think he should be much more severely punished than

          3  someone who is a 15-year-old doing this crime. And I

          4  would like your comment on that.

          5                 MR. HILLS: I think the City

          6  Administrative Code probably accommodates that. I'm

          7  not that familiar with it. Possibly somebody else

          8  from the City could clarify. But normally juvenile

          9  penalties are different from adult penalties. And in

         10  this case, the amount of damage would determine

         11  whether it was felony property damage or misdemeanor

         12  property damage. But regardless, juveniles, there

         13  are limits to what can be imposed on a juvenile.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes, but if

         15  somebody is a 20-year-old, a 20-year-old is no

         16  longer juvenile.

         17                 MR. HILLS: True. I think that if, and

         18  the Police Department could probably clarify this,

         19  but I think that you will see that most graffiti

         20  vandals are released here. I don't know what the

         21  acronym stands for, but ACD, I remember sitting in a

         22  hearing here in 1995 and being incredibly impressed

         23  with the number or arrests that the Police

         24  Department had done early in that year, and then to

         25  find out that most of those vandals had been
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          2  essentially left with an arrangement that if they

          3  didn't reoffend in six months, they were home-free.

          4  Well, the fines for adults, for vandalism in this

          5  case, I think is $500. And so what I saw was a

          6  quarter million dollars walking right out the door

          7  that probably could have cleaned up a lot of

          8  neighborhoods. But I can't respond on how juveniles

          9  are accommodated more than when you have a juvenile

         10  who is eligible for a fine and the family is unable

         11  to pay that. I'm sure there are accommodations here

         12  because there are in virtually every city. The idea

         13  is not to be more a burden to a family that is

         14  economically incapable of paying.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: In your work

         16  in graffiti, do you find it difficult to really

         17  impart this knowledge to the folks that you meet as

         18  you go around? You said that basically your job is

         19  folks that you meet as you go around; you said that

         20  your job is basically dealing with graffiti and

         21  educating the folks as a CBO; what specifically do

         22  you do with the folks that have to deal with this?

         23                 MR. HILLS: Most of what we do is to

         24  convey to municipalities who are starting to deal

         25  with the problem what other municipalities have done
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          2  successfully on the problem.

          3                 We don't have draft legislation, and

          4  we don't create things. We have the largest library

          5  of anti-graffiti programming and anti-graffiti

          6  ordinances. We also try to network the people who

          7  have gone through this experience, with the people

          8  who are just coming into this experience.

          9                 For a long time we published a primer

         10  on anti-graffiti programming because we found that

         11  the person put in charge of the program was usually

         12  the person who missed the meeting on the program, so

         13  those are the kind of services.

         14                 We're working with the City of

         15  Minneapolis. Tomorrow we will launch a retailer

         16  education program in Minneapolis and a reward

         17  program for reporting graffiti vandalism in

         18  progress.

         19                 We promote wherever we can values

         20  education, and try to stimulate communities to deal

         21  with that. Because we feel that to reduce the tagger

         22  stream, we need to get these kids in middle school

         23  and reinforce the values that they had going in

         24  there, because that's when they pick their peer

         25  group, and if they go into a tagger crew, then we
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          2  pretty much lost them until they come into the

          3  system and we would rather not have them come into

          4  the system.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: If you have

          6  to compare the cities you have dealt with, where

          7  does New York City stand in terms of information and

          8  laws, as far as graffiti is concerned?

          9                 MR. HILLS: I think the body of the

         10  code is really quite comprehensive in New York City.

         11                 I think that the Police Department

         12  seems to be among the most sophisticated in dealing

         13  with this problem. I think the Council seems quite

         14  well versed in the problem and what tools they have

         15  to deal with it.

         16                 I don't see sentencing that I'd like

         17  to see, and I don't see an interest from the

         18  education community in the values education area.

         19  That is not unique, but that's the view of an

         20  outsider who has not really studied this. I'm just

         21  giving you may impression.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         24  Council Member.

         25                 Let me just put on the record, Mr.
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          2  Hill, as you said, you are funded by the paint

          3  industry, and I think it's very important for us to

          4  realize when we understand that you're supporting

          5  not only the past bill but this bill, and we thank

          6  you for that, and for your efforts on behalf of our

          7  youth. This is a group which is supported, again, by

          8  the paint industry, including the legitimate spray

          9  paint industry, not this ridiculous Montana brand.

         10                 Last time you testified you gave us

         11  some interesting testimony about yet another

         12  rational reason we have, rational basis to target

         13  this age group, 18 to 20, and you discussed the

         14  access to cars that this group has, which makes them

         15  even more potent as a vandalizing force; can you

         16  discuss that again?

         17                 MR. HILLS: I'm sorry, I didn't get

         18  that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You discussed

         20  the access to cars that the ages 18 to 20 have that

         21  people underneath that, younger than that do not

         22  have, which makes them more able to spread graffiti

         23  over a large area.

         24                 MR. HILLS: Yes, well, I don't know --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's just a
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          2  little hard to hear you, if you can pull that mic

          3  closer.

          4                 MR. HILLS: Oh.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          6                 MR. HILLS: I think that it may be

          7  different here with the concentration and with the

          8  rapid transit, public transit system, but what we

          9  find in areas like Washington DC is that a lot of

         10  our tagger crews will come in from Virginia or from

         11  Maryland. They will have their own cars, of course,

         12  to do this, and they will do it because they come

         13  from rather affluent neighborhoods where they don't

         14  want to get caught. And we see this in a number of

         15  urban areas where the suburban kids move much the

         16  same as in the city, a tagger who is going to be

         17  working in the subway would go for interborough

         18  trains rather than intra-borough to spread himself

         19  around.

         20                 These kids, I see the same tags from

         21  Dallas Airport to Alexandria, Virginia.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think you're

         23  right. It is a problem here, I can tell you from

         24  personal observation, there is a senior center in my

         25  district, the Delmonica Senior Center, big white
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          2  wall, I didn't happen to personally observe it, but

          3  I spoke to witnesses who saw a car, youths jump out,

          4  spray the wall, sprayed the word "Brooklyn" for most

          5  of their tags, jumped back in the car and disappear.

          6  And I researched the tags and sure enough, it was a

          7  crew from Brooklyn who are using their cars,

          8  traveling from county-to-county and spreading their

          9  vandalism. So, it is an occurrence here also. And

         10  also a reason why we are increasing the penalties

         11  against 18 -- we're making it easier to enforce

         12  against 18- to 20-year-olds.

         13                 Are there any other questions for Mr.

         14  Hills, before we go to the next panel of community

         15  advocates?

         16                 We welcome Gale Brewer.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Hills.

         18                 MR. HILLS: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And Jimmy Oddo

         20  also back there behind me.

         21                 Jimmy, we've discussed the

         22  discrepancy with the Staten Island pictures which

         23  were handed out by CAU. So, you don't have to get

         24  upset about that. Simcha Felder took care of it.

         25                 Now I'd like to call up Barry
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          2  Schneider, Judith Schneider, Julie Story, Akeno

          3  Lopez and Michael York, and for a full disclosure

          4  statement, the little poll I took before wasn't out

          5  of 100 people, it's more like 50 people, but the one

          6  person who did raise their hand may have only been

          7  because it was permanently raised due to some sort

          8  of injury. So, I just wanted to be clear about that.

          9                 MS. SCHNEIDER: No, I actually saw a

         10  woman with a spray can at 77th Street.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: 77th Street.

         12  Okay, why don't we just begin from right to left.

         13                 MR. SCHNEIDER: Good morning, Mr.

         14  Chairman. My name is Barry Schneider, but you can

         15  call me Ishmal.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: My name is

         17  Ishmal.

         18                 MR. SCHNEIDER: No, you're A-hab.

         19                 And I want to commend, I was going to

         20  say your passion for this, I might even say your

         21  monomania in pursuing the graffiti vandals and the

         22  graffiti devastation that occurs throughout all of

         23  our communities. I commend you for that, and I

         24  couldn't agree more with your intent of the law and

         25  I support it whole-heartedly.
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          2                 I represent the East 60s Neighborhood

          3  Association in the East 60s here in Manhattan. We

          4  are a 17 year old group dedicated to the community

          5  we live in and one of the scourges, as we all know,

          6  is the tags, the graffiti. No service seems to go

          7  unblemished for any period of time, and if this law

          8  moves forward and gets some of the spray paint out

          9  of the hands of these vandals, I think we're going

         10  in the right direction.

         11                 I also want to commend the New York

         12  Police Department for their efforts, particularly

         13  the Explorers Group, with whom the Neighborhood

         14  Association works to help remove graffiti from

         15  buildings in our district. And just one anecdote,

         16  we've been anti-graffiti for a very long time, and

         17  several years ago, my wife and I, Judy, were in our

         18  car in Florida driving to an airport, and we got a

         19  phone call on our cell phone, it's Inspector James

         20  Rogers of the 19th Precinct Commanding Officer, to

         21  alert us of the fact that overnight the 19th

         22  Precinct had arrested two graffiti vandals, and I

         23  think the irony is the graffiti vandals were called

         24  into the police by a homeless man, so we have a

         25  whole panoply of community issues, but we do want to
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          2  commend the Council and urge them to go forward with

          3  this very, very important legislation. Thank you.

          4                 MS. SCHNEIDER: Good morning, Council

          5  members. My name is Judith Schneider, and I am the

          6  Executive Vice President of the East 60s

          7  Neighborhood Association. ESNA is a 17-year-old 48

          8  block all volunteer neighborhood association.

          9                 Many of the members of our

         10  beautification committee are citizen pruners who

         11  have been trained by the City of New York Department

         12  of Parks and Recreation. Time has taken away from

         13  our pruning efforts trying to deal with the

         14  graffiti, which is a very unwelcome aspect of City

         15  life. It does nothing to enhance our community, and

         16  we feel we would be more productive spending that

         17  time pruning more of the City's street trees.

         18                 Instead, we are spending time and

         19  money pursuing the Post Office for paint, calling

         20  the Mayor's CAU office for paint and supplies, and

         21  buying the supplies when we can't get them donated.

         22  Then we go out and remove the graffiti, only to find

         23  it is back again within a week.

         24                 We are fighting a never-ending

         25  battle. More and more of the glass store fronts are
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          2  acid etched with graffiti. Graffiti appears on

          3  postal mailboxes, green storage boxes, controller

          4  boxes, lamp posts, parking meters, fire hydrants,

          5  and buildings.

          6                 We paint over the building walls when

          7  we have the owner's permission, or the CAU does it

          8  for us. Then there are the buildings that the owners

          9  refuse to remove the graffiti, or refuse to let us

         10  help them with the graffiti removal by getting the

         11  CAU involved. When we started 17 years ago, dirty

         12  sidewalks and streets were our biggest source of

         13  complaints in the East 60s and now it's the run-down

         14  graffiti'd buildings on Second Avenue and around the

         15  corner on 62nd Street, and I brought some pictures

         16  along so that you can see just how terrible it is.

         17                 This legislation will help stop the

         18  defacement of public and private property. I implore

         19  you and your fellow Council members to pass the

         20  legislation immediately. Thank you for hearing my

         21  testimony.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. We

         23  welcome Jim Gennaro, who was out tagging buildings,

         24  he informs me. And I just want to mention, you

         25  mentioned two things, I want to thank Council Member
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          2  Brewer who is with us, who I was proud to co-sponsor

          3  the bill that she introduced and we worked on

          4  together to ban etching acid a few years ago, which

          5  was one of the first of its kind, because of the

          6  huge problem that that now has become. You can't

          7  clean up etching acid. You only can replace the

          8  windows, which cost hundreds of dollars, and this

          9  bill in fact raises the age from 18 to 20 for

         10  possession of etching acid also. That part was not

         11  challenged. That part is still in existence, because

         12  apparently not even an artist could justify using

         13  etching acid out on the streets. So, it's something

         14  that still exists, and I want to thank Gale Brewer

         15  for that.

         16                 You also mentioned the buildings that

         17  refused to allow clean-ups, and that actually

         18  personally happened to me with a building that I

         19  attempted to get cleaned up for years and years and

         20  that was the genesis of the law that I put in at the

         21  same time as this one, which would force a building,

         22  six families and up, or a commercial building to --

         23  the owner of that building to have it cleaned or

         24  face a violation. That's a new law that's in

         25  existence. You can report it to CAU. I guess CAU
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          2  would be --

          3                 MS. SCHNEIDER: These are vacant

          4  buildings that I was referring to, which is a

          5  problem because the owner can't decide how he wants

          6  to develop the property. And now they've put up

          7  scaffolding because the building is falling down.

          8  And it's been up for maybe about seven years.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Sounds like a

         10  bigger problem than graffiti then, but --

         11                 MS. SCHNEIDER: It's a huge problem.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You could

         13  potentially fine that building for having graffiti

         14  on it. So, let's move on. Thanks.

         15                 MS. SCHNEIDER: Thank you.

         16                 MS. STORY: Good morning. My name is

         17  Julie Story. I represent the Sunnyside United

         18  Neighborhood Network in Sunnyside Queens. In 2002 my

         19  husband and I were walking through our neighborhood

         20  and we decided that we had to do something about the

         21  continual growing graffiti that was encroaching in

         22  our neighborhood. Virtually every vendor gate was

         23  covered, parks, schools completely defaced, and

         24  people came up to us repeatedly, we're very active

         25  in the neighborhood, and said, why are they doing
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          2  this? Why do people do this? We're afraid.

          3  Especially the elderly were frightened. It's been

          4  stated that the quality of life drops dramatically

          5  and people believe that a neighborhood is unsafe

          6  when there is graffiti.

          7                 The three of us met with the Mayor's

          8  Neighborhood Assistance Unit and began to plan for a

          9  volunteer clean-up event in conjunction with the

         10  City services. We held our first event in April of

         11  2003, with 75 volunteers and over 80 vendors having

         12  signed up.

         13                 We had no idea what we were doing,

         14  but we had 65 gallons of donated paint in my living

         15  room, and we've dispersed them to paint over

         16  graffiti, and out of that overwhelming response, we

         17  founded the Sunnyside United Neighborhood Network.

         18                 We are a group of volunteers and we

         19  work with all of our local agencies. It is an

         20  ongoing battle. It takes an enormous amount of time

         21  to mobilize volunteers, to find funding, organize

         22  events.

         23                 We interface with the 108th Precinct,

         24  the Departments of Probation, Sanitation, Parks, the

         25  Fire Department. Councilman Eric Gioia is very much
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          2  a part of our efforts, Assemblywoman Catherine

          3  Nolan, and all of this work is done by volunteers

          4  who have full-time commitments, full-time jobs. And

          5  although we've been somewhat successful in our

          6  efforts, it takes an enormous amount of time. We

          7  spend thousands of dollars, hundreds of man hours to

          8  maintain our 40-block catchment zone. We do power

          9  washing and paint. We can barely stay above it. All

         10  of this work and all of this organization can be

         11  shattered in 30 seconds by a vandal with a spray

         12  paint can. Any further restrictions to spray paint

         13  cans, other graffiti implements and making them

         14  harder to get, making them easier to track when

         15  they're stolen or sold by an inappropriate vendor

         16  would be beneficial to the City, obviously from an

         17  economic standpoint in the amount of dollars spent,

         18  but also would greatly improve the quality of life

         19  in this City.

         20                 We do not remove graffiti from

         21  authorized murals. We are not talking about those

         22  kinds of instances. We do believe that the people

         23  who are authorized to do that will have more than

         24  enough access to the paints they need. We are

         25  cleaning over vandalism that is illegal and has
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          2  desecrated our neighborhood. As one who is in the

          3  trenches, trying to maintain the value of my

          4  property, caring for the neighbors in our

          5  neighborhood, making them feel safe, I strongly urge

          6  the Council to pass this bill. Thank you.

          7                 And I do have other ideas since you

          8  had asked, at some other time, having been out there

          9  that might further the cause.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: As soon as we

         11  hear from this young man, maybe we'll hear some of

         12  those.

         13                 MR. YORK: Hi. Good morning. My name

         14  is Michael York. I work for RY Management. We are a

         15  residential property management company. I represent

         16  about 15,000 units. I would like to thank you for

         17  the opportunity to speak about the way graffiti

         18  negatively impacts families that are subject to it.

         19                 The problems associated with graffiti

         20  go far beyond it plainly being unsightly and

         21  unwanted. There is a lot that goes into the

         22  day-to-day maintenance of the residential buildings.

         23  Typically buildings are broken up into apartments

         24  where specific chores are assigned on a routine

         25  basis. The job of the porter is, you know, fairly
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          2  straightforward. There are a number of tasks that

          3  are performed on a daily basis to be sure that the

          4  premises are kept clean and orderly.

          5                 Handymen generally charged with this

          6  task of addressing services that are requested by

          7  the residents, such as stoppages, lock-outs, but

          8  handymen are also charged with the task of

          9  maintaining the building systems that provide basic

         10  services, such as heat and hot water.

         11                 Now, I could bore you for hours about

         12  how disheartening it is for residents when they exit

         13  their apartment in a hallway, or a floor, outside on

         14  the sidewalk where they live and see graffiti.

         15                 The porter that goes up to the floor

         16  to do regular maintenance has the same experience.

         17                 I mean, I have listened to a number

         18  of employees, a number of the staff members that

         19  talk about how graffiti affects their spirit when

         20  they're trying to maintain a certain standard.

         21                 For a handyman, it's the same thing.

         22  There are a number of things that you'd like to

         23  accomplish throughout the day, and you know, when

         24  you're called away from a job for cleaning services

         25  requests from the residents to go and clean up
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          2  graffiti, it's a little bit disheartening.

          3                 In this respect graffiti, you know,

          4  quite frankly, detracts the quality of life for all

          5  involved - the people that are subject to living

          6  with it and those that are subject to removing it.

          7                 Now, in some instances graffiti is

          8  outright dangerous. There are a number of groups

          9  that actually use graffiti to mark territory, and in

         10  some instances, even leave messages through it. It

         11  has its own language basically.

         12                 When this is the case, the inherent

         13  danger is evident. As I said earlier, graffiti has

         14  an effect on the basic quality of life of those that

         15  are subject to it. Members of maintenance staff that

         16  are faced with graffiti, I mean it simply kills

         17  their motivation.

         18                 When a porter arrives at work with

         19  the intent of giving their all and making the police

         20  look like something they would be proud of, only to

         21  find spray paint on the walls, you know, it's

         22  difficult to remain enthusiastic, especially when

         23  it's a repeat offense.

         24                 The same goes for the handyman. There

         25  is something inherently rewarding about solving a
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          2  problem that a resident may face. When your ability

          3  to do that is hindered because you are called to do

          4  graffiti removal, it strikes right at the heart of

          5  the employee's motivation.

          6                 All that being said, there still

          7  remains the burden of cost involved in the actual

          8  removal of the graffiti, and the materials that are

          9  used to remove the graffiti cost, the labor and

         10  hours that are spent doing graffiti removal cost.

         11  The fact that graffiti and possession of the tools

         12  that are used to commit this act are not treated as

         13  a serious crime, in my opinion, only fosters the

         14  confidence of the adolescents having engaged in it.

         15  Measures such as Intro. 576 that can be taken to

         16  send an intolerant stern message about engaging in

         17  graffiti helps not only people that are subject to

         18  it, but deter those that would do it. Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I want to thank

         21  the four of you, especially Ms. Schneider and Ms.

         22  Story. This is our job, and to some extent your job

         23  was made much tougher by graffiti, but as you said,

         24  you're volunteers, and you do this. You have other

         25  jobs and you do this on your own time to beautify
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          2  your neighborhoods, and we all appreciate that.

          3                 Council Member Brewer, do you have a

          4  question?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm sorry, the

          6  woman from Sunnyside, I had a question. Your name?

          7                 MS. STORY: Julie Story.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Hi, Julie.

          9  Thank you, Council member, for mentioning the issue

         10  regarding windows and the acid. We also have the

         11  post box problem, and we have about 40 interns and

         12  what we do every summer is the Post Office's job.

         13  And, so, my question is, Citywide every single post

         14  box it seems is covered with graffiti; have you had

         15  any discussion with the Post Office about this

         16  issue? In our neighborhood we, obviously just like

         17  you, get volunteers, paint from the post office, and

         18  actually we have a wonderful local paint store that

         19  donates to any block association who will in fact

         20  get rid of graffiti. He will give whatever paint is

         21  necessary for free. But again, it's volunteers and

         22  it's effort. So, the question is, how do you work

         23  with the post office?

         24                 MS. STORY: The US Post Office has an

         25  Adopt a Mailbox Program, and I knew that it existed,
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          2  but it took me awhile to dig it up. I did find it.

          3  And we are very much involved with them. We go and

          4  get the paint and supplies and we have a grid in our

          5  area and we have all of the, over 40, almost 60

          6  mailboxes in our area have been adopted by a

          7  resident and we have found that the most effective

          8  way to remove graffiti is to remove it as quickly

          9  after it happens as is possible. When Mr. Felder

         10  made the comment, the question as to how often it is

         11  a return offense, it's almost immediate. We know

         12  that the people who create these tags, the number

         13  one thing that irritates them is to remove graffiti

         14  as soon as possible, and we love doing that. And we

         15  found that if we do it week after week, day after

         16  day, they eventually go away in our area. But that's

         17  what we do. There is a form to be signed. They

         18  notarize it, and for a year you are authorized to

         19  paint any mailbox in the City.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, you

         21  basically give the gallon or half gallon of paint to

         22  the person who is volunteering and he or she keeps

         23  up with that post box?

         24                 MS. STORY: That's correct. We have

         25  little smaller sizes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right, we have

          3  the same. We're going to keep working at it.

          4                 MS. STORY: Very effective.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

          8                 And I have to agree with you

          9  completely. It's all about notoriety, and if you

         10  clean it the first time, they'll be right back. The

         11  second and third time, little less, and then

         12  eventually, they don't want to get caught, they

         13  don't want to go to jail, they just want their name

         14  up there and in those places where their name will

         15  stay up there.

         16                 So, the Adopt a Mailbox Plan, do you

         17  go to your local post office? How does that work?

         18                 MS. STORY: Yes. Tony Quersha

         19  (phonetic) in our area, we just set up an

         20  appointment in the morning, and we go, he gives us,

         21  you know, how many gallons we ask for at the time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Out of the post

         23  office?

         24                 MS. STORY: Yes, sir.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. I didn't
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          2  know about that one.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: They even

          4  deliver it by FedEx. We got gallons and gallons and

          5  gallons in our office and we're ready to go with all

          6  of our 30 volunteers.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Not through the

          8  US Post Office but through FedEx?

          9                 MS. STORY: My husband and I have

         10  found that the finest purchase we have made in New

         11  York City was a pick-up truck, and so we're able to

         12  go pick up paint everywhere, and so we go to the

         13  post office.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Nice.

         15                 Council Member Garodnick.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I really

         17  just wanted to add my voice of thanks to all of you

         18  for being here and in particular, to Barry and Judy

         19  Schneider for all of their work on the east side,

         20  and the East 60s Neighborhood Association, of

         21  course, their work on the community board. These

         22  issues are ones that are challenges in our

         23  neighborhood, as well as many neighborhoods around

         24  the City, but I just really wanted to express some

         25  personal thanks for you to be here, for your being
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          2  here and offering your views on this legislation.

          3                 So, thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So you represent

          5  Sunnyside or Woodside, East 60s, the Bronx, and I

          6  have testimony from Queens that I'm going to read

          7  some of it into the record, one group, the 114

          8  CivOp, which is much like you guys, gets out there,

          9  but I give them some funding, but on their own time

         10  cleans up everything, and they say that the majority

         11  of graffiti vandals are under the age of 21,

         12  Citizens Against Graffiti Everywhere, CAGE, says

         13  that graffiti is on the rise, not just kids,

         14  organized crews target specific areas in order to

         15  gain notoriety for their tags. Most vandals that

         16  they have seen are over the age of 18. They believe

         17  that the ages of 18 to 21 is the largest population

         18  of offenders. Support this legislation. And again,

         19  they represent 55 community groups regarding

         20  fighting graffiti and they support this also. And

         21  that's from Frederick Kress. So, I'd like to add

         22  that onto the record.

         23                 I also believe that we're being

         24  filmed by Chinese Television in the back, so we

         25  welcome that delegation. There's a joke there about
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          2  the price of graffiti in China some place, but we

          3  welcome you here. This is a hearing in which we are

          4  exploring ways to fight graffiti in New York City,

          5  and to give the Police Department the tools it needs

          6  to better fight graffiti, and we welcome you here

          7  today.

          8                 Any other questions for this panel?

          9  Well, again, you are volunteers, we thank you. This

         10  is why we do what we do. Again, we're paid for it,

         11  you're not, so we thank you for your support.

         12                 With that, we are -- we actually have

         13  Mayor Lee from the Wuha Province (phonetic) in

         14  China. So, welcome, Mayor Lee. Thank you.

         15                 Mayor Lee, is graffiti a problem in

         16  China?

         17                 (Not using the microphone.

         18  Inaudible.)

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, then,

         20  we're going to come visit your city and learn from

         21  you. But it is a common problem throughout the

         22  world. Thank you for coming all the way here and to

         23  observe how we do things here in New York City.

         24  Welcome.

         25                 Okay, well, this hearing is over, and
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          2  we thank you all for your testimony and look forward

          3  to working with you all. Meeting adjourned.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 11:33 a.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 25th day of June 2007.
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         24                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

                                                            72

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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